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State of New Hampshire

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER
25 Capitol Street — Room 120
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

LINDA M. HODGDON JOSEPH B. BOUCHARD
Commissioner Assistant Commissioner
(603) 271-3201 (603) 271-3204

December 2, 2013

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Administrative Services to enter into a confract with Easter Seals
New Hampshire, Inc., Manchester, New Hampshire, vendor code 177204, to provide an employee
shuttle service for state employees who work in the State House complex. The total amount of the
contract shall not exceed $65,531.25. This contract shall begin on January 2, 2014 and end on June
30, 2015. 100% General Funds

Funding is available in account titted Administrative Services as follows:

01-14-14-140010-1302 Special Disbursements

FY14 103-502664 Contracts for Operational Service $32,437.50
FY 15 103-502664 Contracts for Operational Service $33,093.75
Contract Total $65,531.25

EXPLANATION

The General Court appropriated funding in the FY 14-15 biennium to provide an employee
shuttle service for state employees that work at the State House Complex. The shuttle will provide
service from the central parking lot at the Department of Transportation building on Stickney Avenue
to the State House, State House Annex, Department of Justice, State Library and Legisiative Office
building. The shuttle will run during the legislative session from 6:45 to 8:45 in the morning and in the
afternoons from 3:30 to 5:30 PM.

The Request for bids was placed on the Bureau of Purchasing web site and advertised in a
statewide newspaper. We received one bid from Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.

Respectfully submitted,
Kemda) Qs 4, Ln—

Linda M. Hodgdon
Commissioner

FAN 603 271-6600 TDD Access Relay NH 1-800-735-2964



FORM NUMBER P-37 ( version 1/09)

Subject: State Employee Shuttle, State House Complex

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name ‘
Administrative Services |

| 1.2 State Agency Address
25 Capital Street, Room 106B
Concord, NH 03301

72 .3 Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address

Fasree dcacs New /##mpsm(ec Ine. |555 Auguien ST, MANCHSsTSIC WH 02(03

1.8 Price Limitation

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Co mpletion Date
Number

01-14-14-140010-1302-103 June 30, 2015 $65,531.25

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

Michael P. Connor ‘ (603) 271-6899

*. 12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

1.11 Contracter Signature

An— EliWTREANIRZ, CFD

Pl
.J.13 Acknowledgement: State of Naw Ny, M,,(County of lilish poug A

On Dumblr 3, 2013 | before the under%lgned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is 51gnbd in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity

12,

Tﬁtles)f Notary or Justice of the Peace

&ém 0 Burke | N s

MPS

A

',

/)

% o
'/

£,
—"""‘W‘\\

1.14  State Agency Signature 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
Linda M. Hodgdon, Commissioner

Gﬁm»&) I/K,Q(Lﬂ QZQ/‘/_‘ Department of Administrative Services

1.16 Approval by the N.H. Department of}Admlmstratlon, Division of Personnel (if applicable)
!

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Fjbrm, Substance and Execution)

U1 (v w15 ] 13

1.18 Approval by the Governor and Exec#tive Council

By: : On:

Page 1 of 8



8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts dr omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of defavplt hereunder
(“Event of Default”):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satlsfaq:torlly or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement. ‘

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the foltowmg actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreenﬂent effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice sﬁecxfymg the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of rthe contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or |

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and ﬁursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has be¢n received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the propeny\of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand pr upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be govemeb by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.,

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the|Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report’!) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of thé Termination
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Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an anount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be

=
Contractor Initials < 7
Date /;
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EXHIBIT “A”

1. The Contractor shall prqvide “employee shuttle service” from the Department of
Transportation building locpted on Stickney Avenue in Concord, New Hampshire to the pick up
and drop off locations for the State House Complex consisting of the State House, State House
Annex, Department of Justice, State Library and Legislative Office Building in Concord, New
Hampshire.

2. The term of this contraci shall be for a two year period beginning on January 2, 2014 and
ending on June 30, 2015. The shuttle service shall run during the legislative session from
January 2, 2014 through June 30, 2014 (125 working days) and from January 2, 2015 through
June 30, 2015 (125 working days). The shuttle service shall run during the weekdays during
the Legislative Session. -

3. The term, “employee shuttle service”, as used above shall include providing all supervision,
materials, equipment, labor and transportation necessary to provide the required level of
services as described herein.

4. The Contractor shall provide the employee shuttle service with a minimum of two (2) 12
passenger vehicles. The Contractor shall pay for the entire cost of insurance, registration and
maintenance and shall provide a replacement vehicle in the event of a breakdown of one of the
primary vehicles.

5. The Contractor shall pravide professional drivers who shall maintain proper operating
licenses, pass a Department of Transportation physical, and pass a background check which
shall include a full criminaﬂ and driving record background check.

6. The Contractor shall fully comply with the American with Disabilities Act and any state
laws and regulations governing accessibility for disabled persons. In the event that accessible
transportation is required, tiw Contractor shall make reasonable accommodation by deploying
an accessible vehicle as needed. The Contractor shall have an accessible vehicle on stand by to

provide the required service.
7. The Contractor shall provide full dispatch and management services.

8. The Contractor shall prdvide transportation to all authorized state employees.
Transportation shall be to the areas described herein.

9. The shuttle service shall operate with designated pick up and drop off spots identified by the
State. Vehicles shall load to capacity with no standees on first-come, first served basis. In the
event that capacity is not reached and no passengers are waiting for service, vehicles will
proceed to their destination. Vehicles will maintain a minimum waiting period of five minutes
at the designated pick up lJications in the morning peak time and at the designated pick up lot in
the afternoon peak time. |

Page 5 of 8 Contractor Initials -7
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EXHIBIT “B”

. The Contractor shall receive payment in the amount of $86.50 per hour for a not to exceed
price of $32,437.50 for the period commencing on January 2, 2014 until June 30, 2014, and
$88.25 per hour for a not to exceed price of $33,093.75 for the period commencing January
2, 2015 until June 30, 2015 (herein after referred to as the contract price) in return for the

services described in Exhibit “A.”

. The Contractor shall be paid the hourly rates detailed above for the actual hours they provide
employee shuttle services not to exceed three hours per day as described herein. This hourly
rate shall include all expenses. No additional fees shall be allowed. Unless approved in
advance by the Contracting Officer, the Contractor shall be paid for the hours of operation as
described in Exhibit A. The Contractor shall not be paid for any travel time or mileage from
the main headquarters to either Stickney Avenue or the State House complex.

. The Contractor shall invoice the State monthly at the end of each month for services
rendered.

. Payment will be made within thirty (30) days following receipt of invoice and acceptance of
the work to the State’s satisfaction. Said payment shall be made by means of a check mailed
to the address in Paragraph 1.4 of this contract.

&7
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EXHIBIT “C”

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. Delete Paragraph 14.1.1 and substitute the following: comprehensive general liability
insurance against all clairﬁs of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not less
than $250,000 per claim and $1,000,000 per incident and no less than $1,000,000 in
excess/umbrella liability {¢ach occurrence; and

2. There are no other special provisions of this contract.

78
Page 8 of 8 Contractor Initials 7
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CERTIZFICATE OF VOTE / AUTHORIZATION

I, Betty Burke, do hereby certify that:
1. I am the duly elected Assistant Secretary of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.

2. The following is a true copy of a resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of
Directors of the Corpd?ration duly held on May 22, 2013.

RESOLVED: To authorize tbe president, chief operating officer/chief financial officer, vice
president of finance, senior vice president of human resources and the legal counsel of the
corporation, or any one of thém acting alone, to execute contracts, leases and documents,
which have been approved 1@ accordance with the policies of the corporation and its fiscal
authorities adopted by the board of directors and to include within that authority Easter Seals
New York, Inc., Easter SealsiMaine, Inc., Easter Seals Rhode Island, Inc., Easter Seals
Connecticut/dba Coastal F airEeld County, Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center
(Farnum Center), Webster Place Center, Inc., Special Transit Services, Inc. or Agency Realty,
Inc.

3. I further certify that \ Elin Treanor is the CFO of Easter Seals

New Hampshire, Inc. J and al/ its subsidiaries, and is still qualified and serving in such
capacity.

4, The foregoing resolution has not been amended or revoked and remains in full force
and effect as of Detawlpe A, 2013

bty ik,

Assistant Secré’tary

2013 .

Dl e et

Notarﬁb{hcwmov M. BOELEE Notary Public

\

The foregoing instrument wa§ acknowledged before me this And nc] day of
\
\

My Commission Explres Oct. 21, 2014



State of Nefu Hampshire
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation
formed November 6, 1967. 1 further certify that it is in good standing as far as this office

is concerned, having ﬁ]ed} the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOQF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 2" day of December A.D. 2013

ety Bk
William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




Client#: 497072

ACORD.

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

EASTESEA7

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
11/27/2013

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF I}FORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOE
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER | GONEACT
USI Insurance Services LLC ! {’N"é’,"ﬁo, £xy: 603 625-1100 l (FAAI)é, Nk
PO Box 6360 E-MAIL
ADDRESS:
ManCheSter' NH 031 08-6360 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
603 625-1100 nsurer A : Philadelphia Insurance Company 23850
INSURED INSURER B :
Easter Seals NH, Inc.
INSURERC :
Easter Seals NY, Inc.
INSURERD :
555 Auburn Street INSURER E -
Manchester, NH 03103 :
INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT,| TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES.

LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

ADDLISUBR POLICY EFF_| POLICY EXP
II.'.‘TSRR TYPE OF INSURANCE j&k WVD POLICY NUMBER (MMID%IYYYYY MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS
A | GENERAL LIABILITY PHPK1068435 09/01/2013 | 09/01/2014 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000
| X| COMMERGIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PR R e nnce) | $100,000
CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) | $5,000
X| Professional Liab PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | $1,000,000
GENERAL AGGREGATE $3,000,000
GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - cOMP/OP AGG | $3,000,000
POLICY .F,’Sé-’f LOC ) $
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY PHPK1068435 09/01/2013|09/01/2014 Moty o-E MT 141,000,000
X| any AuTo BODILY INJURY {Per person) | $
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED -
T s BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
X NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident)
; $
A | X|UMBRELLALIAB | X | occur I?HUB432951 09/01/2013 | 09/01/2014| EACH OCCURRENCE $15,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE i AGGREGATE $15,000,000
pED | X| rerenTion $$10,000
WORKERS COMPENSATION WC STATU- OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN ‘TORY LIMITS |ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE L
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? |:| NIA EL. BAGH ACCIDENT $
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| $
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | §

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)
**Supplemental Names**: Easter Seals NY, Inc., Easter Seals ME, Inc., STS, Inc., Agency Realty, Inc.,

Easter Seals Rhode Island, Inc., The Harbor Schools, Inc., Manchester Alcohol Rehabilitation Center, inc.,
dba The Farnum Center, Easter Seals VT, Inc., Easter Seals CT, Inc., Webster Place Center, Inc., - The
General Laibility policy includes a blanket automatic Additional Insured endorsement that provides
Additional Insured and a Blanket Waiver of Subrogation status to the Certificate holder, only when there is

(See Attached Descriptions)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

Mike Connor or successor

Dept. of Administrative Services
State of NH

25 Capitol Street

Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2010/05) 1 of 2
#S11357412/M10868299

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

SCLCA




DESCRIPTIONS (Continued from Page 1)

a written contract or written agreement between the named insured and the certificate holder that requires
such status, and only with regard to the above referenced on behalf of the named insured. The General
Liability policy contains a special endorsement with "Primary and Non-Contributory” wording.

RE: Concord Shuttle Service

SAGITTA 25.3 (2010/05) 2 of 2
#511357412/M10868299



) @ DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 11/15/2013

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: if the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER 1-617+723-7775 ﬁgm‘E:ACT Michael Boisvert
Hays Companies of New England
¥y P o PHONE ey 617-778-5040 fAle, Noj: 617-723-5155
133 Federal Street Eb'm{%ss: mboisvert@hayscompanies.com
3rd Floor
Boston, MA 02110 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
INSURER A : LIBERTY INS CORP 42404
INSURED INSURER B :
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
INSURER C :
555 Auburn Street INSURERD :
Manchester, NH 03103-4803 ‘ INSURER E :
| INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 36954068 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL|SUBR POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE D POLICY NUMBER MM/DD. {MMIDD/YYYY) LIMITS
GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTED
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY ! PREMISES (Ea occurrence} | $
CLAIMS-MADE D OCCUR ; MED EXP (Any one person) | §
] | PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | §
GENERAL AGGREGATE S
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | §
POLICY RO LOoC $
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY %oahggémiﬁnsmel.e TIMIT s
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED -
AUTOS AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS {Per accident}
$
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
DED | ‘ RETENTION $ $
WORKERS COMPENSATION WC7-611-258839-013 01/01/14| x| {NEITATU. oTH-
A | AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN 9 01/01/13 /01/ TORY LIMITS ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 1,000,000
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? l:| N/A
{Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| $ 1,000,000
if yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | $ 1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space Is required)
Evidence of Insurance- Insured Records Only

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
Evidence of Insurance THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

Evidence of Insurance AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Evidence, NH 02110 ?C(/L/\_/
vsA .

|
! © 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

ACORD 25 (2010/05) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
mboisvert

36954068
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The Board of Directors
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. a

We have audited the accompanyiy

Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries

consolidated statements of activitie
years then ended. These consolid

management. Our responsibility is
on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accord
America and the standards applic
issued by the Comptroller General

ER NEWMAN NOYES

DEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

nd Subsidiaries

ng consolidated statements of financial position of Easter Seals New
(Easter Seals NH) as of August31, 2012 and 2011, and the related
s and changes in net assets, functional expenses and cash flows for the
Jated financial statements are the responsibility of Easter Seals NH’s
to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based

ance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
able to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of

material misstatement. An audit ing

for designing audit procedures th
expressing an opinion on the effec

Accordingly, we express no such o
the amounts and disclosures in the

principles used and significant esti
statement presentation. We believe

In our opinion, the financial stat

consolidated financial position of E

and 2011, and the consolidated cha
conformity with accounting princip

In accordance with Government A
2012 on our consideration of East
financial reporting and our tests of
grant agreements, and other matter

internal control over financial repor
opinion on the internal control over
an audit performed in accordance

assessing the results of our audit.

ludes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis
at are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
tiveness of Easter Seals NH’s internal control over financial reporting.
inion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
mates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

ements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
aster Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of August 31, 2012
nges in their net assets and their cash flows for the years then ended in
es generally accepted in the United States of America.

uditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 12,
er Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ internal control over
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and
s. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
ting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in

Baker Newman & Noyes, LLC

|




The Board of Directors

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. 4

Our audits were conducted for the

taken as a whole. The consolida
additional analysis, rather than to

entities, and is not a required pg

responsibility of management and
other records used to prepare the ¢

subjected to the auditing procedure
additional procedures, including ¢
accounting and other records used

financial statements themselves,

stated in all material respects in rel

Manchester, New Hampshire
December 12, 2012

2

L

generally accepted in the United S

aind Subsidiaries

purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
ting information identified in the contents is presented for purposes of
present the financial position and changes in net assets of the individual
art of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
pnsolidated financial statements. The consolidating information has been
s applied in the audits of the consolidated financial statements and certain
omparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated
ind other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
tates of America. In our opinion, the consolidating information is fairly
ation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

&J(er ?\)amn eAbes

Limited Liability Company




EASTER SEAL

CONSOLIDA

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

August 31,2012 and 2011

ASSETS

Accounts receivable from affiliates

Program and other accounts receivable, less contractual
allowance of $131,500 in 2012 and $219,900 in 2011,
and allowance for doubtful accounts of $395,000 in

2012 and $1,041,500 in 2011
Contributions receivable, less al

lowance for

doubtful accounts of $25,000 in 2012 and $25,600 in 2011
Current portion of assets limited as to use

Prepaid expenses and other curr
Total current assets

Assets limited as to use, net of curr]
Fixed assets, net

Property held for sale

Bond issuance costs, net
Investments, at fair value
Beneficial interest in trusts held by

Current liabilities:
Lines of credit
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accounts payable to affiliates
Rate reserves
Current portion of deferred reve
Current portion of interest rate s
Current portion of long-term del

Total current liabilities

Deferred revenue, net of current po

Other liabilities

Interest rate swap agreements, less

Long-term debt, less current portio
Total liabilities

Net assets:
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted
Total net assets

See accompanying notes.

ent assets

ent portion

others and other assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

nue
wap agreements
b

-

rtion

current portion
n

S NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

\TED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

012 2011
$ 4,402,187 $ 5,017,529
441,980 223,162
9,321,570 10,226,883
491,729 319,711
458,005 842,144
1304173 _1.074.366
16,419,644 17,703,795
5,017,773 5,799,466
25,132,481 25,368,864
910,171 505,256
254,390 290,808
13,005,757 11,811,775
6,620,011 5252717
$67,360,227 $66,732,681
$ 1,982,604 $§ 648463
2,630,935 3,613,387
4,362,192 3,731,257
- 314,557
435,008 1,091,579
1,757,283 1,374,854
734,470 726,083
746,716 774.891
12,649,208 12,275,071
3,778,487 3,867,560
1,168,659 1,151,944
4,401,508 3,315,362
22923934 24,530,741
44921796 45,140,678
11,937,759 11,503,651
598,750 594,327
9.901.922 9,494,025
22438431 21,592,003
$67,360,227  $66,732,681



EASTER SEAILS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Year Ended August 31, 2012
Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted _Restricted Restricted Total
Public support and revenue:
Public support:
Contributions $ 1,529,794 $ 370,723 § 62,323 $ 1,962,840
Special events, net of related
direct costs of $618,599 1,114,326 71,451 - 1,185,777
Annual campaigns, net of related
direct costs of $79,441 445,604 32,367 - 477971
Bequests 127,761 - - 127,761
Net assets released from restrictions 482.671 (482.671) - -
Total public support 3,700,156 (8,130) 62,323 3,754,349
Revenue: ,L]
Fees and grants from governmental
agencies 64,356,494 - - 64,356,494
Other fees and grants 26,783,639 - - 26,783,639
Sales to public 4,057,412 - - 4,057,412
Dividend and interest income 680,465 3,635 - 684,100
Rental income 140,373 - - 140,373
Other 642.262 - - 642,262
Total revenue 96.660.645 3.635 - 96,664,280
Total public support and revenue 100,360,801 (4,495) 62,323 100,418,629
Operating expenses:
Program services:
Public health education 595,634 - - 595,634
Professional education 22,251 - - 22,251
Direct services 88.415.347 — - 88.415.347
Total program services 89,033,232 - - 89,033,232
Supporting services:
Management and general 8,700,472 - - 8,700,472
Fundraising 1.882.355 - - 1,882,355
Total supporting services 10,582,827 - - 10,582.827
Total functional expenses 99,616,059 - - 99,616,059
Support of National programs 134,887 - - 134.887
Total operating expenses 99,750,946 - - 99,750,946
Increase (decrease) in net assets fram operations 609,855 (4,495) 62,323 667,683
4




EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (CONTINUED)
1

Year Ended August 31, 2012

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted _Restricted Restricted Total
Other nonoperating expenses, gains and losses:
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps ~ $ (1,262,396) § - A - $ (1,262,396)
Net unrealized and realized gains
on investments 562,646 6,681 — 569,327
Increase in fair value of beneficial
interest in trusts held by others - — 345,574 345,574
Gain on sales and disposals of property,
plant and equipment ‘ 4,442 - - 4.442
|
| (695.308) 6.681 345574 (343.053)
(Decrease) increase in net assets before
effects of discontinued operations (85,453) 2,186 407,897 324,630
Gain from discontinued operations 519.561 2,237 - 521,798
Total increase in net assets 434,108 4,423 407,897 846,428
Net assets at beginning of year 11,503.651 594,327  9,494.025 21,592,003
Net assets at end of year $_11,937,759 $_598,750 $9,901,922 $_22,438431

See accompanying notes.




EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Year Ended August 31, 2011
Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted _Restricted Restricted Total
Public support and revenue:
Public support:
Contributions $ 963,732 § 455,661 $ 22,145 $ 1,441,538
Special events, net of related
direct costs of $481,329 1,105,477 81,197 - 1,186,674
Annual campaigns, net of related
direct costs of $69,773 477,678 52,524 - 530,202
Bequests 73,533 — - 73,533
Net assets released from restrictions 1,113.409 (1,113.409) - -
Total public support 3,733,829 (524,027) 22,145 3,231,947
Revenue:
Fees and grants from governmental
agencies 56,865,518 - - 56,865,518
Other fees and grants 29,698,053 - — 29,698,053
Start-up programs 161,178 - - 161,178
Sales to public 3,610,166 - — 3,610,166
Dividend and interest income 620,764 2,157 - 622,921
Rental income 141,855 - - 141,855
Other 542.808 - - 542.808
Total revenue 91,640,342 2.157 - 91.642.499
Total public support and revenue 95,374,171 (521,870) 22,145 94,874,446
Operating expenses:
Program services:
Public health education 622,395 - - 622,395
Professional education 22,136 - - 22,136
Program start-up 595,904 - - 595,904
Direct services 82,245,658 — - 82,245,658
Total program services 83,486,093 ~ - 83,486,093
Supporting services:
Management and general 8,586,344 - - 8,586,344
Fundraising 1,.853.986 - - 1,853.986
Total supporting services 10,440,330 - - 10,440,330
Total functional expenses 93,926,423 - - 93,926,423
Support of National programs 123.151 — - 123.151
Total operating expenses 94,049,574 - - 94,049,574
Increase (decrease) in net assets fram operations 1,324,597 (521,870) 22,145 824,872
6




EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended August 31, 2011

Temporarily Permanently

Other nonoperating expenses, gains and losses:
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps  $  (693,108) §$ - $ -

Net unrealized and realized gains
on investments

Increase in fair value of beneficijal

interest in trusts held by others

Gain on sales and disposals of property,

plant and equipment

Increase in net assets before effects of

discontinued operations
Loss from discontinued operations
Total increase in net assets
Net assets at beginning of year

Net assets at end of year

See accompanying notes.

Unrestricted  Restricted Restricted Total

$  (693,108)

386,226 556,612 - 942,838

- - 292,764 292,764

200,277 - - 200,277

(106.605) 556.612 292,764 742,771

1,217,992 34,742 314,909 1,567,643
(699.038) 1,795 - (697.243)

518,954 36,537 314,909 870,400

10,984,697 557,790  9,179.116 20,721,603

$_11,503,651 $__ 594327 $9.494,025 $_21,592,003
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended August 31,2012 and 2011

Cash flows from operating activitigs:
Increase in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to

net cash (used) provided by dperating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Bad debt provision
Increase in beneficial intefest in trusts held by others
Gain on sales and disposals of property, plant and
equipment and property held for sale
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps
Net unrealized and realized gains on investments
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable from affiliates
Program and other accounts receivable
Contributions receivable
Prepaid expenses and gther current assets
Other assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accounts payable to affiliates
Rate reserve
Deferred revenue
Other liabilities

Net cash (used) provided by pperating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and

equipment and property held for sale
Cash provided by acquisition
Increase in investments, net
Change in assets limited as to use

Net cash provided (used) in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayment of long-term debt
Issuance of long-term debt
Payment for termination of interest rate swap
Repayments on lines of credit
Borrowings on lines of credit
Bond issuance costs

Net cash (used) provided by financing activities
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year
: 10

2012 2011
$ 846428 $ 870,400
1,897,233 1,827,293
46,344 404,756
(345,574) (292,764)
(2,024,351) (135,268)
1,254,211 678,470
(569,327) (943,568)
(218,818) 319,917
858,969 675,629
(172,018) (64,208)
(203,018) (207,610)
(723,547) -
(405,642) 942,895
(314,557) 314,557
(656,571) 207,970
(938,226)  (1,132,800)
16.715 238,967
(1,651,749) 3,704,636
(1,794331)  (5,668,528)
3,034,938 1,280,638
227,830 -
(624,655)  (1,049,731)
_ 1165832 (900.963)
2,009,614  (6,338,584)
(2,508,652)  (1,606,999)
360,982 5,391,471
(159,678) -
(26,040,436)  (17,928,961)
27374,577 17,987,920
- (196.969)
(973207) _ 3.646.462
(615,342) 1,012,514
5.017.529  _ 4.005.015
$_4,402,187 $_5,017,529



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

August 31,2012 and 2011

2012 2011
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Interest paid, net of capitalized interest of approximately
$104,000 in 2011 (none in 2012) $_1.225000 $_ 1,068,000

During 2012 and 2011, Easter Seals NH transferred property with a net carrying value of $1,513,272 and
$50,883, respectively, from fixed|assets to property held for sale. Additionally, Easter Seals NH sold
property held for sale with a net carrying value of $1,108,357 in 2012 (see note 13). During 2012, Easter
Seals NH received a donated building with an estimated fair value of $1,100,000, which has been recorded
as deferred revenue (see note 5). See also acquisition described in note 12.

See accompanying notes.
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EASTER SEAI_LS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
\
!

NOTES TOCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
August 31,2012 and 2011
Corporate Organization and Purpose

Easter Seals New Hampsh1r$, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Easter Seals NH) consists of eleven separate

nonprofit entities: Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. (parent and service corporation); Easter Seals
New York, Inc. (Easter Seal§ NY); Easter Seals Maine, Inc. (Easter Seals ME); Easter Seals Rhode
Island, Inc. (Easter Seals RI); Agency Realty, Inc. (real estate corporation); The Harbor Schools
Incorporated (Harbor Schools); Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center; Special Transit Service,
Inc. (transportation corporation); Webster Place, Inc. (Webster Place), which was acquired in 2012 -
see note 12; Easter Seals Connecticut, Inc. (Easter Seals CT); and Easter Seals Vermont, Inc. (Easter
Seals VT). Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. is the sole member of each subsidiary. Easter Seals NH
is affiliated with Easter Seals,}lnc. (the national headquarters for the organization).

On January 25, 2012, the B vard of Directors of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. voted to close
Harbor Schools and cease all pperations of this subsidiary, and also voted to approve discontinuing the
group home and special education programs in Rutland, Vermont (see note 13).

Easter Seals NH’s purpose is to provide (1) programs and services for people with disabilities and other
special needs, (2) assistance to people with disabilities and their families, (3) assistance to communities
in identifying and developing needed services for residents, and (4) a climate of acceptance for people
with disabilities and other special needs which will enable them to contribute to the well-being of the
community. Easter Seals NH operates programs throughout New Hampshire, New York, Maine,
Massachusetts (prior to the clﬁ)sure of Harbor Schools), Rhode Island, Vermont and Connecticut.

Prior to April 26, 2011, Fem‘#lif Housing Development Fund Company, Inc. (Fernclif) was an entity
affiliated with Easter Seals NY; however, the accounts of Fernclif are not included in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements as Fernclif has separate reporting requirements to
various federal and state agencies, and is required to maintain its separate accounts. Effective April 26,
2011, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals NY resolved to transfer, for no consideration, all
membership interests in Fernclif to an unrelated not-for-profit organization.
|
In December 2010, Easter Sdals NY issued the Series 2010 Bonds described in note 8 to finance the
acquisition of certain property located in Irondequoit, New York, provide for improvements to a school
building and an existing rehabilitation facility, and construct two residential rehabilitation facilities.
The start-up programs at this location began operations in August of 2011, and start-up program
revenues and operating expenses approximated $161,000 and $596,000, respectively, for the year
ended August 31, 2011. Easter Seals NY ceased classifying revenues and operating expenses relating
to these programs as start-up revenues and expenses on August 31, 2011. Revenues and operating
expenses relating to these programs after August 31, 2011 have been included within other revenue and
operating expense classifications on the accompanying consolidated statement of activities and changes
in net assets for the year ended August 31, 2012, and approximated $5,372,000 and $5,027,000,
respectively.
|
\
\
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EASTER SEAL

NOTES TO

Summary of Significant Acc

S NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2012 and 2011

punting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial sta
the subsidiaries of which it i
have been eliminated in conso

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Easter Seals NH considers all
less to be cash equivalents.
money market funds, excludin

Management has implement
$2,277,000 and $2,152,000
$1,689,000 of investments 1
respectively.

Assets Limited as to Use and 1

atements include the accounts of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and
5 the sole member. Significant intercompany accounts and transactions
lidation.

highly liquid securities purchased with an original maturity of 90 days or
Cash equivalents consist of cash, overnight repurchase agreements and
g assets limited as to use.

ed a practice to establish cash reserves on hand. Approximately

of cash and cash equivalents, and approximately $2,070,000 and
were on-hand under this practice as of August31, 2012 and 2011,

nvestments

Assets limited as to use cons
original maturities greater thay
at fair value. Realized gains 3
The changes in net unrealize
nonoperating expenses, gains

Ists of cash and cash equivalents, short-term certificates of deposit with
n 90 days, but less than one year, and investments. Investments are stated
ind losses on investments are computed on a specific identification basis.
d and realized gains and losses on investments are recorded in other
and losses in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities and

changes in net assets. Donated securities are stated at fair value determined at the date of donation.

|
Beneficial Interest in Trusts |
\
\

Easter Seals NH is the beneficiary of several trusts held by others. Easter Seals NH has recorded as an
asset the fair value of its interest in the trusts and such amount is included in permanently restricted net
assets, based on the underlying donor stipulations. The change in the interest due to fair value change
is recorded within other nonoperating expenses, gains and losses as permanently restricted activity.

|
Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Expenditures for
maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred, and expenditures for major renovations are
capitalized. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
underlying assets.

Fixed assets obtained by Easter Seals NH as a result of acquisitions on or after September 1, 2011 are

recorded at estimated fair value as of the date of the acquisition in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles guidance for acquisitions by a not-for-profit entity.

13



EASTER SEAL

NOTES TO

Summary of Significant Acc

S NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2012 and 2011

ounting Policies (Continued)

Donated property and equipm
the date of donation. If don
recorded as restricted suppa
resolution of the uncertaintig
equipment are recorded as un

Property held for sale is recorg

Intangible Assets and Long-Li

ent not subject to donor stipulated conditions is recorded at fair value at

ors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are
rt or, if significant uncertainties exist, as deferred revenue pending
s. In the absence of such stipulations, contributions of property and
estricted support. See also note 5.

led at the lower of net realizable value or carrying value.

ved Assets

Accounting rules require that
over their respective estimate
management for impairment
intangible assets at August 3
obtained in the acquisition of

ntangible assets with estimable or determinable useful lives be amortized
2d useful lives to their estimated residual values, and be reviewed by
Based on management’s assessments, there is no impairment of
1, 2012. Intangible assets at August 31, 2012 consist of a patient list
Webster Place (see note 12).

Expected amortization of intangible assets through the end of their useful lives is as follows:

2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
Thereafter

When there is an indication|

impaired by comparing gross

the assets to their carrying am

the assets, an impairment has
estimates and assumptions a
impairment.

Based on current facts, estima

$ 33,130
33,130
33,130
33,130
33,130

132,523

$298,173

of impairment, management considers whether long-lived assets are
future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated from utilizing
ounts. If cash flows are not sufficient to recover the carrying amount of
occurred and the assets are written down to their fair value. Significant
re required to be made by management in order to evaluate possible

tes and assumptions, management believes that no long-lived assets were

impaired at August 31,2012 and 2011.

Bond Issuance Costs

Bond issuance costs are being
related bonds, or the expects

expense recognized during 20

> amortized by the straight-line method over the repayment period of the
d time until the next refinancing, whichever is shorter. Amortization
12 and 2011 was $36,418 and $14,009, respectively.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO|CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2012 and 2011

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue Recognition

Revenue generated from services provided to the public is reported at the estimated net realizable
amounts from clients, third-party payors and others based upon approved rates as services are rendered.
A significant portion of Easter Seals NH’s revenues are derived through arrangements with third-party
payors. As such, Easter Seals NH is dependent on these payors in order to carry out its operating
activities. There is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates could change by a material
amount in the near term. Differences between amounts previously estimated and amounts subsequently
determined to be recoverablel or payable are included in other fees and grants in the year that such
amounts become known. Easter Seals NH has established rate reserves of $435,008 and $1,091,579 at
August 31, 2012 and 2011, |respectively, for differences between rates previously estimated and
amounts which will be either recoverable or payable to third-party payors based upon actual rates
approved by third-parties. The differences between amounts previously estimated and amounts
subsequently determined to be recoverable from third-party payors did not significantly affect revenue
in 2012 or 2011.

|

Revenues are recognized as et rmed, or attributable to the period in which specific terms of the funding
agreement are satisfied, and tp the extent that expenses have been incurred for the purposes specified
by the funding source. Revenue balances in excess of the foregoing amounts are accounted for as
deferred revenue until any restrictions are met or allowable expenditures are incurred.

The allowance for doubtful| accounts is provided based on an analysis by management of the
collectibility of outstanding balances. Management considers the age of outstanding balances and past
collection efforts in determining the allowance for doubtful accounts. Accounts are charged against the
allowance for doubtful accou ‘ts when deemed uncollectible.

Unconditional contributions a#e recognized when pledged.
Advertising
Easter Seals NH’s policy is to\expense advertising costs as incurred.

Functional Allocation of Expd‘nses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets. Accordingly,
certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services based mainly on time
records and estimates made by Easter Seals NH’s management.

Charity Care (Unaudited)

Easter Seals NH has a formal charity care policy under which program fees are subsidized as
determined by the Board of Directors. Free and subsidized services are rendered in accordance with
decisions made by the Board of Directors and, at established charges, amounted to approximately
$5,979,000 and $6,445,000 for the years ended August 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

15



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO|CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2012 and 2011

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Income Taxes

Easter Seals New Hampshirei Inc., Easter Seals NY, Easter Seals ME, Easter Seals VT, Easter Seals
Rhode Island, Harbor Schools, Webster Place, Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center, Easter
Seals CT and Special Transit Services, Inc. are exempt from both federal and state income taxes under
Section 501(c)3) of the Internal Revenue Code and, for Easter Seals NY of the Not-for-Profit
Corporation Law of the State|of New York. Agency Realty, Inc. received a determination letter from
the Internal Revenue Service \stating that it qualifies for tax-exempt status under Section 501(c)2) of
the Internal Revenue Code.
|
Tax-exempt organizations could be required to record an obligation for income taxes as the result of a
tax position historically taken \on various tax exposure items including unrelated business income or tax
status. In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
assets and liabilities are established for uncertain tax positions taken or positions expected to be taken
in income tax returns when such positions are judged to not meet the “more-likely-than-not” threshold,
based upon the technical merits of the position.

|
Management has evaluated |tax positions taken by Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and its
subsidiaries on their respective filed tax returns and concluded that the organizations have maintained
their tax-exempt status, do not have any significant unrelated business income, and have taken no
uncertain tax positions that require adjustment to or disclosure in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements. Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and its subsidiaries are no longer subject to
income tax examinations by the federal or state tax authorities for years prior to 2009.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date

of the financial statements. E
the reporting period. Actual r

Derivatives and Hedging Acti

stimates also affect the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during
esults could differ from those estimates.

vities

Accounting guidance requires
interest rate swap agreements
to the net amounts receivabls
nonperformance of the other
anticipate nonperformance ang

As of August 31, 2012 and
$4,041,445, respectively, as ¢
result of changes in the fair v:
payment related to one swap 3
decrease in net assets of $1,
$14,638, respectively, includs
ended August 31, 2012 and 2(

that Easter Seals NH record as an asset or liability the fair value of the
described in note 8. Easter Seals NH is exposed to repayment loss equal
e under the swap agreements (not the notional amount) in the event of
party to the swap agreements. However, Easter Seals NH does not
d does not obtain collateral from the other party.

2011, Easter Seals NH had recognized a liability of $5,135,978 and
2 result of the interest rate swap agreements discussed in note 8. As a
alue of these derivative financial instruments and excluding a termination
greement of $159,678 in 2012 (see note 8), Easter Seals NH recognized a
254,211 and $678,470 (including increases in net assets of $8,185 and
ed in discontinued operations) related to swap agreements for the years
11, respectively.
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EASTER SEAIL

NOTES TO

Summary of Significant Acc

Increase (Decrease) in Net As

.S NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2012 and 2011

ounting Policies (Continued)

sets from Operations

For purposes of display, tran
provision of services are repo
assets from operations. The |
losses include the adjustmen
beneficial interest in trusts hel
equipment, and net realized an

\
Reclassifications

sactions deemed by management to be ongoing, major or central to the
rted as revenue and expenses that comprise the increase (decrease) in net
primary transactions reported as other nonoperating expenses, gains and
t to fair value of interest rate swaps, the increase in the fair value of
d by others, gains and losses on sales and disposals of property, plant and
d unrealized gains and losses on investments,

Certain amounts in the 2011 qonsolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the

2012 presentation.

Subsequent Events

Events occurring after the §
determine whether such eve

statements. Management has
year end and December 12, 2
issued.

Recently Issued Accounting Pi

tatement of financial position date are evaluated by management to
nts should be recognized or disclosed in the consolidated financial
evaluated events occurring between the end of Easter Seals NH’s fiscal
12, the date these consolidated financial statements were available to be

rOnouncements

In May 2011, the Financial Ac
Amendments to Achieve Com

GAAP and IFRSs (ASU 20

(ASC) 820, Fair Value Mea

guidance in U.S. generally
Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

measurements, while other 2
ASU 2011-04 requires additig
not be required for nonpubli

effective for annual periods b

is currently evaluating the effi

NH’s financial statements.

scounting Standards Board issued Accounting Standards Update 2011-04,
imon Fair Value Measurements and Disclosure Requirements in U.S.
11-04). ASU2011-04 amended Accounting Standards Codification
surements and Disclosures, to converge the fair value measurement
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and International Financial

Some of the amendments clarify the application of existing fair value
amendments change a particular principle in ASC 820. In addition,
nal fair value disclosures, although certain of these new disclosures will
¢ entities. The amendments are to be applied prospectively and are
eginning after December 15, 2011. The management of Easter Seals NH
bet, if any, that the provisions of ASU 2011-04 will have on Easter Seals




EASTER SEAIL

NOTES TO

Classification of Net Assets

In accordance with the Unifor

are classified and reported ba
reported as either temporari
stipulations that limit the use
by Easter Seals NH has been

restriction expires (when a §
temporarily restricted net as

consolidated statements of ac
Permanently restricted net ass
perpetuity, the income from
stipulated by the donor.

Donor-restricted contributions
as unrestricted contributions i

In accordance with UPMIK

determination to appropriate
preservation of the fund; (b) t
(c) general economic conditio

return from income and the 3

(g) the investment policies of

Endowment Net Asset Compos

.S NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2012 and 2011

m Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA), net assets
sed on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Gifts are
y or permanently restricted support if they are received with donor
of donated assets. Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use
limited by donors to a specific time period or purpose. When a donor
tipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished),
ssets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported in the
tivities and changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions.
ets have been restricted by donors to be maintained by Easter Seals NH in
which is expendable to support all activities of the organization, or as

whose restrictions are met within the same year as received are reported
n the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

A, Easter Seals NH considers the following factors in making a
or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: (a) the duration and
he purpose of the organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund;
ns; (d) the possible effect of inflation and deflation; (e) the expected total
ippreciation of investments; (f) other resources of the organization; and
the organization.

ition by Type of Fund

The major categories of endov

vment funds at August 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Temporarily = Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

2012

Camping program ‘ $ - $ 1,698 $ 362,869 $ 364,567
Other programs ‘ - 14,345 327,555 341,900
Operations = - - 3,613,207  3.613.207
Total endowment net assets $_ - $16,043 $4,303,631 $4,319,674
2011

Camping program § - $ 1,221 $ 362,869 $§ 364,090
Other programs - 13,564 265,232 278,796
Operations - - 3,613,207  3.613.207
Total endowment net assets e $14,785 $4,241,308 $4,256,093
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EASTER SEAL

NOTES TO

Classification of Net Assets (|

S NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2012 and 2011

Continued)

Changes in Endowment Net As

ysels

During the years ended Augu
related activities:

st 31, 2012 and 2011, Easter Seals NH had the following endowment-

Net endowment assets, Augus} 31,2010

Investment return:

Investment income, net of fees

Net appreciation (realized
and unrealized)

Contributions
Appropriated for expenditure

Net endowment assets, August 31, 2011

Investment return:
Investment income, net of
Net appreciation (realized

and unrealized)

Contributions
Appropriated for expenditure

€S

Net endowment assets, August 31, 2012

In addition to endowment net

2012

Seniors program
Veterans program
India initiative
Other programs
Operations

Total non-endowment net asse¢

Temporarily = Permanently
Unrestricted _Restricted Restricted Total

$(28,530) $ 49,480 $4,219,163 $4,240,113
- 160,155 - 160,155
28,530 388,520 - 417,050

- - 22,145 22,145
= {583.370) - (583.370)

- 14,785 4241308 4,256,093

- 54,655 - 54,655

- 523,768 - 523,768

- - 62,323 62,323
- (577.165) - _(577.165)

$ = $_16.043 $4,303,631 $4.319.674

assets, Easter Seals NH also maintains non-endowed funds. The major
categories of non-endowment funds, at August 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Total Non-

Temporarily Permanently Endowment

Unrestricted  Restricted Restricted Net Assets
$ 106,866 $ 16,386 $ - $ 123,252
- 353,044 - 353,044

- 51,900 - 51,900

35,199 128,877 - 164,076
11,795,694 32,500 5,598.291 17.426.485
$11.937,759  $582,707 $5,598,291  $18,118,757

19



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2012 and 2011

Classification of Net Assets ‘fContinued)

Total Non-
Temporarily Permanently Endowment
Unrestricted  Restricted Restricted Net Assets

2011 |

Seniors program ‘ $ 109,971 § 21,024 $ - $ 130,995
Veterans program - 307,977 - 307,977
India initiative I - 86,356 - 86,356
Other programs 20,445 131,685 - 152,130
Operations 11,373,235 32,500 5,252,717 16.658.452
Total non-endowment net assets $11,503,651 $579,542 $5,252,717  $17.335.910

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment funds
may fall below the level that the donor requires Easter Seals NH to retain as a fund of permanent
duration. Deficiencies of this nature are reported in unrestricted net assets. There were no deficiencies
between the fair value of th; investments of the endowment funds and the level required by donor

stipulation at August 31,2012 or 2011.
|

Investment and Spending Polﬁ‘cies

Easter Seals NH has adopte(i investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to
provide a predictable stream} of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to
maintain the purchasing pow‘pr of the endowment assets. Endowment assets include those assets of
donor-restricted funds that Easter Seals NH must hold in perpetuity or for a donor-specified period.
Under this policy, as approved by the Board of Directors, the endowment assets are invested in a
manner that is intended to produce results that exceed the price and yield results of an appropriate
market index while assuming a moderate level of investment risk. Easter Seals NH expects its
endowment funds to providel an average rate of return over a five year period equal to the rate of
inflation plus 5%. Actual returns in any given year may vary from this amount.

To satisfy its long-term rate-pf-return objectives, Easter Seals NH relies on a total return strategy in
which investment returns are|achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and
current yield (interest and dividends). Easter Seals NH targets a diversified asset allocation that places
a greater emphasis on equity-based investments to achieve its long-term return objectives within
prudent risk constraints.

Easter Seals NH may appropriate for distribution some or all of the earnings and appreciation on its
endowment for funding of operations. In establishing this policy, Easter Seals NH considered the
objective to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets held in perpetuity or for a
specified term as well as to, 50 long as it would not detract from Easter Seals NH’s critical goals and
initiatives, provide additional real growth through new gifts and investment return.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO|CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2012 and 2011

Leases

Easter Seals NH leases certain assets under various arrangements which have been classified as
operating leases. Total expense under all leases (including month-to-month leases) was approximately
$2,101,000 and $1,930,000 for the years ended August 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Some of these
leases have terms which include renewal options, and other may be terminated at Easter Seals NH’s
option without substantial penalty. Future minimum payments required under the leases in effect at
August 31, 2012 and 2011, through the remaining contractual term of the underlying lease agreements,
are as follows:

Year Ended August 31:

2013 $1,737,897
2014 : 1,203,282
2015 435,909
2016 ‘ 229,489

2017 | 89,603

Easter Seals NY leases certain facilities for school operations from unrelated parties at lease terms that
are either below fair market yalue, or that are almost entirely rent-free. Under accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, lease agreements must be evaluated based upon
their economic substance rather than legal form, and a lease subsidy would be recorded as both
contribution and rental expense. However, Easter Seals NH has determined that such amounts would
not be material to the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Easter Seals NY subleases certain office space located at 11 West 42™ Street in New York to an
unrelated party. The sublease agreement expires in August 2013. Total rental income earned under

this sublease agreement for the years ended August 31, 2012 and 2011 was approximately $140,000
and $142,000, respectively.

Fixed assets consist of the following at August 31:

Fixed Assets

2012 2011
Buildings $ 28,872,993 $ 29,481,389
Land and land improvements 3,493,590 3,793,004
Leasehold improvements 892,094 830,761
Office equipment and furniture 9,993,575 9,865,652
Vehicles 3,093,740 3,143,807
Construction in progress 861.415 1,059.007

47,207,407 48,173,620
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (22,074.926) (22.804.756)

$25132,481 $.25,368,864
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO/CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2012 and 2011

Fixed Assets (Continued)

Depreciation and amortization expense related to fixed assets totaled $1,827,988 and $1,813,284 in
2012 and 2011, respectively. Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets included within
discontinued operations in 2012 and 2011 totaled $90,991 and $187,501, respectively.

During 2012, Easter Seals [NH received a donated building with an estimated fair value of
approximately $1,100,000. Under the terms of the donation, for a period of six years, Easter Seals NH
must continue to use the building as a child care center. Should Easter Seals NH cease to operate the
program, or wish to sell or danate the property, Easter Seals NH must first provide the donor with the
opportunity to purchase the property for $1. The contribution representing the fair value of the
building has been recorded as deferred revenue at August 31, 2012.

Easter Seals NH has outstanding construction commitments totaling approximately $2,460,000 at
August 31, 2012.

Investments and Assets Limited as to Use

Investments and assets limited as to use, at fair value, are as follows at August 31:

2012 2011
Cash and cash equivalents | $ 2,822,042 $ 4,351,252
Certificates of deposit 1,750,201 1,570,514
Marketable equity securities 1,905,202 1,770,046
Mutual funds 10,900,984 9,377,957
Corporate and foreign bonds 792,669 1,063,594
Government and agency securiities 310,437 320,022

18,481,535 18,453,385

Less: assets limited as to use | (5.475.778) (6.641.610)
Total investments, at fair valu}: $13,005.757 $11.811,775




EASTER SEAL

NOTES TO

S NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2012 and 2011

Investments and Assets Limited as to Use (Continued)

The composition of assets limited as to use at August 31,2012 and 2011 are set forth in the table shown
below at fair value. The portipn of assets limited as to use that is required for obligations classified as
current liabilities is reported in current assets.

| 2012 2011
Under an agreement with the State of Connecticut, which provides that
the funds be utilized for certain allowable program expenditures:
Cash and cash equiva]eqts $2,284,027 $2,880,440

Certificates of deposit

| 1,750,201 1,570,514

4,034,228 4,450,954

Under a deferred compensation plan (see note 7):

Investments

1,167,789 1,151,396

Under 2010 bond indenture agreements (see note 8):

Cash and cash equivalents - 780,510
Maintained in escrow to make|required
payments on certain bonds (see note 8):
Cash and cash equivalents 273.761 258.750

Total assets limited as to use

The principal components of i
summarized below. Amoun
significant.

$5,475.718 $6,641,610

nvestment income, gains and losses included in continuing operations are
ts included in discontinued operations for 2012 and 2011 were not

Unrestricted investment income and unrealized

and realized gains on inves
Dividend and interest in
Net unrealized gains
Net realized gains

Restricted investment income
and realized gains on inves
Dividend and interest in
Net unrealized gains
Net realized gains

2012 2011
ments:
come $ 680,465 $ 620,764
393,815 358,851
168.831 27375

1,243,111 1,006,990
and unrealized

ments:

come 3,635 2,157
1,905 392,497
4.776 164.115

10,316 558,769

$1,253,427 $1,565.759
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO|CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2012 and 2011

|
Retirement Plans ‘

Easter Seals NH maintains a Section 403(b) Plan (a defined contribution retirement plan), which covers
substantially all employees. Eligible employees may contribute any whole percentage of their annual
salary. Employee contributions may be matched by Easter Seals NH as determined in the annual
budget. The combined amount of employer and employee contributions is subject by law to annual
maximum amounts. The employer match was approximately $490,000 and $423,000 for the years
ended August 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Easter Seals New Hampshire, | Inc. offers, to certain management personnel, the option to participate in
an Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plan to which the organization may
make a discretionary contribution. The employees’ accounts are not available until termination,
retirement, death or an unforeseeable emergency. Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. contributed
approximately $120,000 and $127,500 to this plan during the years ended August 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. The assets and | liabilities associated with this plan were $1,167,789 and $1,151,396 at
August 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, and are included within assets limited as to use and other
liabilities in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position.

Borrowings

Borrowings consist of the foll%wing at August 31:
|

[\
N
[\
(=]
—_

Revenue Bonds, Series 2004 A, tax exempt, issued through the New

Hampshire Health and Edugation Facilities Authority NHHEFA),

with a variable rate determined through weekly remarketing (0.17% at

August 31, 2012) through December 2034, annual principal payments

continually increasing from $365,000 to $1,060,000 with a final

payment of $1,060,000 dug December 2034, secured by a pledge

of all gross receipts of Easter Seals NH and certain letters of

credit (see below) $15,025,000 $15,370,000
Revenue Bonds, Series A, issued through the Massachusetts

Development Finance Agency (MDFA), monthly principal

installments, which escalate annually at 5.34% ranging from $5,571

to $12,689 through October 2025, plus interest on the outstanding

balance. Interest is payable monthly on the sixth day of the month at

(i) forty-five basis points plus (ii) 69% of the sum of (A) the spread

(225 basis points) plus (B) LIBOR, secured by mortgage interest in

various real properties, paid in full in November 2011 - 1,547,396
Revenue Bonds, Series B, issued through the MDFA, monthly principal

and interest of $5,727 through October 2012. Interest is payable

monthly on the sixth day of the month at a fixed rate of 5.31%, paid in

full in November 2011
Revenue Bonds, Series 2010, issued through the Monroe County

Industrial Development Corporation, interest only payments due

through December 2011, after which monthly principal and interest

payments ranging from $9,770 to $21,980 are required through the

maturity date of December|31, 2040. Interest is payable monthly at a

rate equal to 68% of the sum of the monthly LIBOR rate plus 2.65%

(1.97 % at August 31, 2012) 5,171,840 5,250,000

- 77,544
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NOTES TO

Borrowings (Continued)

Mortgage note payable to a ba
of $1,723 plus interest pay4d
$79,160 due December 201
investments and certain rea
and 195 Stratton Road in R|

Mortgage payable to a bank w
(2.89% at August 31, 2012
monthly, with a final paym
secured by all business asse
excluding certain assets lim
August 31, 2012

Note payable to a bank with a
of $823 payable monthly, d

Note payable to a bank with a
of $4,919 payable monthly,
March 2012

Note payable to a bank with a
of $3,177 payable monthly,

Unsecured note payable to an
principal and interest of $1

Non-revolving note payable tg
$3,500,000 (33,139,018 av;
August 31, 2012),with a va
(4.31% at August 31,2012
2014, after which monthly
required through the matur
in certain property with an
August 31, 2012

Less current portion

Principal payments on long-te

2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
Thereafter

S NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2012 and 2011

nk with a fixed rate of 5.91%, principal

ble monthly, with a final payment of
5, secured by a pledge of all unrestricted

| property located at 11 Burnham Street

utland, Vermont, paid in full in April 2012 § - $ 168,756
th a variable rate of LIBOR plus 2.65%
, principal of $9,500 plus interest payable
ent of $2,299,000 due March 2015,
ts and property of Easter Seals CT,
ited as to use totaling $4,034,228 at
2,584,000 2,698,000
fixed rate of 4.25%, principal and interest
ue July 2013, secured by a vehicle 8,941 18,216
fixed rate of 2.50%, principal and interest
secured by vehicles, paid in full in
- 34,248
fixed rate of 3.66%, principal and interest
due August 2015, secured by vehicles 108,052 141,472
individual with a fixed rate of 5.25%,
0,311 payable monthly, due April 2016 411,835 -
a bank with a total availability of
ailable for additional borrowings at
riable rate of LIBOR plus 4.07%
), interest only payments through June
principal and interest payments are
ty in June 2015, secured by an interest
et book value of § at
360.982 -
23,670,650 25,305,632
746,716 774.891
$22,923.934 324,530,741

rm debt for each of the following years ending August 31 are as follows:

$ 746,716
828,396
3,336,933
631,204
574,200
17.553.201

$23,670,650
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Borrowings (Continued)

Lines of Credit

Easter Seals New Hampshir
equipment line of credit. The
vehicles for use by Easter Sea
borrowings is at a fixed rate 4
Availability under this nonrev
notes payable as of August3
outstanding under this agreem

Easter Seals New Hampshire,
Seals NY and Harbor Schools
to $7 million (a portion of wh
is related to Easter Seals NY)
has the following sub-limits

Easter Seals NY $3 million a
borrowings is at LIBOR plu
interest rate will increase fro

S NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2012 and 2011

e, Inc. has an agreement with a bank for a $500,000 nonrevolving
line of credit is to be used to fund the purchase of New Hampshire titled
Is NH through January 2, 2013. The interest rate charged on outstanding
it the then prime rate minus 0.75% for maturities up to a five-year term.
olving line of credit, which is reduced by the original amount of certain
1, 2012 and 2011, is $285,128 at August 31, 2012. No amounts were
ent as of August 31, 2012 and 2011.

Inc. (the sole member of Easter Seals NY and Harbor Schools), Easter
have a revolving line of credit with a bank, with available borrowings up
ch is secured by available letters of credit of $110,795, of which $39,795

Outstanding advances are due on demand. The revolving line of credit
which were last amended in May 2012; Easter Seals NH $3.5 million,
nd Harbor Schools $500,000. The interest rate charged on outstanding
5 2.25% (2.49% at August 31, 2012). Under an event of default, the
LIBOR plus 2.25% to LIBOR plus 5.25%. The line is secured by a first

priority interest in all business assets of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., Easter Seals NY and Harbor
Schools. The agreement requires that collective borrowings under the line of credit be reduced to

$3,500,000 for 30 consecutive days during each calendar year.

The agreement also limits each

borrower’s ability to incur additional indebtedness in excess of $500,000. Amounts outstanding under
this revolving line of credit agreement at August31, 2012 and 2011 were $451,302 and $0,

respectively, related to Harba
Seals NY.

Easter Seals CT has a demarn
$1 million. The interest rate
August 31, 2012). The line is
certain assets limited as to us
line is guaranteed by Easter ¢
additional indebtedness in exq
Easter Seals NH borrowings
agreement at August 31, 2012

r Schools and $1,124,649 and $345,519, respectively, related to Easter

d revolving line of credit with a bank with available borrowings up to
charged on outstanding borrowings is at LIBOR plus 2.25% (2.49% at
secured by all business assets and property of Easter Seals CT, except for
e (54,034,228 carrying value as of August 31, 2012). Additionally, this
Seals NH. The agreement also limits Easter Seals CT’s ability to incur
ess of $1,000,000 related to real estate, and is cross collateralized with all
at this bank. Amounts outstanding under this revolving line of credit
and 2011 were $406,653 and $302,944, respectively.
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S NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2012 and 2011

NHHEFA 20044 Revenue Bonds

In connection with the NHHE
of interest and principal of su
Bonds when due. The 2004/
funds with a trustee for curr
included within assets limited
respectively. This agreement
indebtedness. Easter Seals N
credit are each $15,210,240
mainly to support future pring
two other letters of credit tota
is required to replace or renev
bonds may be subject to early
the two letters of credit relatis

FA 2004A Revenue Bonds, Easter Seals NH is required to make deposits
fficient amounts to make the required interest payments and to retire the
A Revenue Bonds require that Easter Seals NH maintain certain reserve
ent required principal and interest payments. Such amounts, which are
as to use, totaled $273,761 and $258,750 at August 31, 2012 and 2011,
also requires bank approval prior to Easter Seals NH incurring additional
H has four available letters of credit securing the bonds. Two letters of
(these two expiring and subject to renewal on December 1, 2013, and
sipal and interest repayments due under the 2004A Revenue Bonds), and
ling $110,795 as described above under lines of credit. Easter Seals NH
y the two $15,210,240 letters of credit upon their expiration or the related
redemption. Easter Seals NH pays an annual fee of 150 basis points for
1g to the 2004A NHHEFA Revenue Bonds. Fees incurred on these letters

of credit totaled approximately $234,000 and $238,000 in 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Series 2010 Revenue Bonds

On December 1, 2010, Easter
Corporation and RBS Citize

Seals NY, in connection with the Monroe County Industrial Development
ns, issued $5,250,000 in Series 2010 tax-exempt Revenue Bonds (the

Series 2010 Bonds). The Series 2010 Bonds were used to finance the acquisition of certain property

located in Irondequoit, New

York, provide for improvements to a school building and an existing

rehabilitation facility, and construct two residential rehabilitation facilities. Additionally, proceeds

were used to refinance certain

Easter Seals NY outstanding debt totaling $922,188.

The Series 2010 Bonds are secured by a mortgage on all properties and improvements financed by the
bonds, and are guaranteed by Easter Seals NH. Easter Seals NY may elect to prepay some portion or
all of the outstanding bonds subject to a prepayment fee, as defined. This agreement also requires bank
approval prior to Easter Seals NY incurring additional indebtedness. The Series 2010 Bonds are
subject to tender for mandatory purchase at the election of the bondholder beginning June 1, 2016, and
thereafter every five years thr#)ugh June 1, 2036.

\

Interest Rate Swap A greemenl{s

Easter Seals NH has an interest rate swap agreement with a bank in connection with the Series 2004A
Revenue Bonds. The swap agreement has an outstanding notional amount of $15,025,000 and

$15,370,000 at August 31, 2
principal reductions, until the
at the fixed rate of 3.54% and

D12 and 2011, respectively, which reduces, in conjunction with bond
agreement terminates in December 2034. Easter Seals NH remits interest
receives interest at a variable rate (0.17% at August 31, 2012).
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NOTES TOICONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2012 and 2011

Borrowings (Continued)

Harbor Schools had an inter#st rate swap agreement with a bank in connection with the Series A
Revenue Bonds with the Massachusetts Development Finance Authority. The interest rate swap
agreement, which would have terminated in October 2015, was terminated effective November 15,
2011 upon Harbor Schools full repayment of Revenue Bonds Series A and B issued through MDFA.
This triggered a termination payment of $159,678 by Easter Seals NH. The swap agreement had an
outstanding notional amount of $1,547,396 at August 31, 2011. This agreement effectively changed
Harbor Schools’ variable interest rate Series A bonds to a fixed interest rate. Under the terms of the
swap, Harbor Schools paid a monthly fixed-rate of 5.53% and received a monthly variable rate based
on a similar formula to the intérest being charged on the Series A bonds.

On February 23, 2011, Easter Seals NY entered into an interest rate swap agreement with a bank in
connection with the Series 2010 Revenue Bonds. The swap agreement had an outstanding notional
amount of $5,171,840 and $§,250,000 at August 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, which reduces, in
conjunction with bond principal reductions, until the agreement terminates in January 2031. Easter
Seals NY remits interest at # fixed rate of 2.99% and receives interest at a variable rate (68% of
monthly LIBOR). \

|

On December 27, 2010, Easter Seals CT entered into an interest rate swap agreement in connection
with an outstanding mortgage payable ($2,584,000 and $2,698,000 at August31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively), until the agreement terminates in March 2015. The original notional amount of
$1,800,000 will reduce ratably in conjunction with repayment of the note payable. The swap
agreement effectively changed the variable rate (2.89% at August 31, 2012) to a fixed rate of 2.72% for
the notional amounts outstanding, which is approximately 65% of the related mortgage payable.

The fair value of the above interest rate swap agreements totaled $5,135,978 and $4,041,445 at
August 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, $734,470 and $726,083 of which was current at August 31,
2012 and 2011, respectively. During the years ended August 31, 2012 and 2011 net payments required
by the agreements (excluding|the Harbor Schools swap termination payment of $159,678 in November
2011) totaled $708,196 and $684,995, respectively. These payments, except for those relating to the
Harbor Schools interest rate swap, which have been included within discontinued operations, have been
included in interest expense within the consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets.
See note 11 with respect to fair value determinations.

Debt Covenants

In connection with the bonds, lines of credit and various other notes payable described above, Easter
Seals NH is required to comply with certain financial covenants including, but not limited to, minimum
liquidity and debt service coverage ratios. At August 31, 2012, Easter Seals NH was in compliance
with restrictive covenants specified under the NHHEFA bonds, Series 2010 Bonds, and other debt
obligations, except for maintaining a maximum leverage ratio of 2.00:1 as required by covenants for the
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. nonrevolving equipment line of credit at August 31, 2012. Easter
Seals NH has not received a waiver for this covenant violation; however, the total amount outstanding
under this line of credit is $8,941, which is classified within the current portion of long-term debt at
August 31, 2012.
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NOTES TO

Donated Services

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2012 and 2011

A number of volunteers have donated their time in connection with Easter Seals NH’s program services

and fundraising campaigns.

However, no amounts have been reflected in the accompanying

consolidated financial statements for such donated services, as no objective basis is available to

measure the value.

Related Party Transactions

Approximately 19% and 209
from Easter Seals, Inc. for the
a member of Easter Seals, Ing
$441,980 and $223,162, respe
Additionally, Easter Seals N
August 31, 2011 for amounts
were $134,887 and $123,151
reflected as support of Nation
changes in net assets.

of other fees and grants revenue is derived from a pass-through grant
years ended August 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Easter Seals NH is
. As of August 31, 2012 and 2011, Easter Seals NH had a receivable of
ctively, from Easter Seals, Inc. related to amounts due under this grant.
Y had an amount payable to Easter Seals, Inc. of $314,557 as of
being refunded under this grant. Membership fees to Easter Seals, Inc.
for the years ended August31, 2012 and 2011, respectively and are
al programs on the accompanying consolidated statements of activity and

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value of a financial instru;
to transfer a liability in an or
In determining fair value, Ea
approaches, and utilizes certa

ment is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
derly transaction between market participants at their measurement date.
ster Seals NH uses various methods including market, income and cost
n assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or

liability, including assumptions about risk and the risks inherent in factors used in the valuation. These

factors may be readily observ
utilizes valuation techniques
unobservable factors.

Certain of Easter Seals NH’s

able, market corroborated, or generally unobservable. Easter Seals NH
that maximize the use of observable factors and minimizes the use of

financial instruments are reported at fair value, which include beneficial

interest held in trusts, investments and the interest rate swaps, and are classified by levels that rank the
quality and reliability of the information used to determine fair value:

Level 1 — Valuations for findncial instruments traded in active exchange markets, such as the New

York Stock Exchange.

Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources for market

transactions involving identical instruments.

Level 2 — Valuations for fi

nancial instruments traded in less active dealer or broker markets.

Valuations are obtained from third party pricing services for identical or similar instruments.

Level 3 — Valuations for fin
pricing models, discounted ¢
exchange, dealer or broker tral
projections in determining fair

ancial instruments derived from other methodologies, including option
cash flow models and similar techniques, and not based on market
ded transactions. Level 3 valuations incorporate certain assumptions and
value.
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EASTER SEA%S NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO! CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2012 and 2011

11. Fair Value of Financial Insti;'uments (Continued)
The following describes the valuation methodologies used to measure financial assets and liabilities at
fair value. The levels relate tp valuation only and do not necessarily indicate a measure of investment
risk. There have been no changes in the methodologies used by Easter Seals NH at August 31, 2012
and 2011.

Investments and Assets Limited as to Use

Cash and cash equivalents ar¢ deemed to be Level 1. The fair values of marketable equity securities,
money market and mutual fi nds and government and agency securities that are based upon quoted
prices in active markets for |identical assets are reflected as Level 1. Investments in certain other
mutual funds and corporate bonds where securities are transparent and generally are based upon quoted
prices in active markets are valued by the investment managers and reflected as Level 2. Investments
in certificates of deposit are at cost plus accrued interest, which is estimated to approximate fair value
and are included in Level 2. |

Beneficial Interest in Trusts Held by Others
1

The beneficial interest in trusts held by others has been assigned fair value levels based on the fair
value levels of the underlying investments within the trusts. The fair values of marketable equity
securities, money market and mutual funds, government and agency securities and other asset funds are
based upon quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and are reflected as Level 1.
Investments in marketable equity securities, mutual funds and corporate and foreign bonds where
securities are transparent and generally are based upon quoted prices in active markets are valued by
the investment managers and reflected as Level 2. Investments in alternative and other asset funds are
derived from other methodologies, including option pricing models, discounted cash flow models and
similar techniques, and not based on market exchange, dealer or broker traded transactions, and are
reflected as Level 3. Level 3 valuations incorporate certain assumptions and projections in determining
fair value.

Interest Rate Swap A greemen}s

The fair value for the interest rate swap liabilities is included in Level 3 and is estimated by the
counterparty using industry standard valuation models. These models project future cash flows and
discount the future amounts to present value using market-based observable inputs, including interest
rates. i
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August 31,2012 and 2011

11. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

At August 31, 2012 and 2011, Easter Seals NH’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a
recurring basis were classified as follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
2012
Assets: |
Assets limited as to use and investments
at fair value:
Cash and cash equivalents $2,822,042 § - $ - $ 2,822,042
Certificates of deposi - 1,750,201 - 1,750,201
Marketable equity securities:
Large-cap 1,715,844 - - 1,715,844
International ‘ 189,358 - - 189,358
Mutual funds, open-ended:
Short-term fixed income 2,704,530 - - 2,704,530
Intermediate-term bond fund 776,015 - - 776,015
High yield bond fund 277,483 - - 277,483
Foreign bond 142,305 - - 142,305
Government securities 684,829 - - 684,829
International equities 350,761 - - 350,761
Domestic, large-cap 850,491 - -~ 850,491
Domestic, mid-caj 1,039,241 - - 1,039,241
Domestic, small-cap 159,736 - - 159,736
Domestic, multi-alternative - - - -
Real estate fund | 68,271 - - 68,271
Mutual funds, closedrended:
Fixed income and|bond 339,555 -~ - 339,555
Domestic, large-cap 2,517,522 - - 2,517,522
Domestic, mid-ca 16,045 - - 16,045
Domestic, small-cap 239,693 - - 239,693
International equi 614,770 - - 614,770
Commodity 119,737 - - 119,737
Corporate and foreign bonds - 792,669 - 792,669
Government and agency securities 310,437 ~ — 310,437
\
| $15.938,665 $2.542,870 $___ - $18.481,535
Beneficial interest in trust held by others:
Money market funds $ 403426 $ - $ - $ 403,426
Marketable equity securities:
Large-cap 2,128,511 136,980 - 2,265,491
Mid-cap 367,586 38,092 - 405,678
Small-cap - 26,099 - 26,099
International 421,345 35,421 - 456,766
Emerging markets 23,776 - - 23,776
Corporate bonds - 622,220 - 622,220
Foreign bonds - 20,659 - 20,659
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11. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

Mutual funds: !
Domestic fixed income
International equity
International fixed ij:ome
Domestic large-cap equity
Domestic mid-cap equity
Domestic small-cap equity

Government and agency securities

Real estate investment trust

Alternative and structured asset funds

]
1

Liabilities: 1
Interest rate swap agreements

2011
Assets:
Assets limited as to use and investments
at fair value:
Cash and cash equivalents
Certificates of deposit
Marketable equity securities:
Large-cap
International
Mutual funds, open-ended:
Short-term fixed income
Bond fund
Foreign bond
Government securities
International equities
Domestic, large-cap
Domestic, mid-ca
Domestic, multi-alternative
Mutual funds, closed-ended:
Fixed income and bond
Domestic, large-cap
Domestic, mid-c
Domestic, small-cap
International equities
Commodity
Corporate bonds
Government and ag

cy securities
i

August 31,2012 and 2011

32

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
3 - $ 975,161 $ - $ 975,161
32,132 - - 32,132
20,938 - - 20,938
62,604 - - 62,604
14,062 - — 14,062
18,779 - - 18,779
34,061 - - 34,061
102,373 - — 102,373
35.452 ~ 78.614 114.066
$ 3,665,045 $1,854,632 $_ 78,614 $_5,598,291
$ - 3 - $5135978 §$_5,135978
$ 4351,252 $ - $ - $ 4,351,252
- 1,570,514 - 1,570,514
1,603,796 - - 1,603,796
166,250 - - 166,250
2,106,206 - - 2,106,206
724.870 - - 724.870
286,037 - - 286,037
327,829 - - 327,829
298,746 - - 298,746
1,239,110 - - 1,239,110
488,926 - - 488,926
- 60,125 - 60,125
304,692 — — 304,692
2,200,754 - - 2,200,754
16,636 — — 16,636
312,947 - - 312,947
630,060 - - 630,060
381,019 — - 381,019
— 1,063,594 -~ 1,063,594
320.022 — — 320,022
$15,759,152 $2,694233 §$_ — $18.453,385
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NOTES TO|CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
!

August 31,2012 and 2011

11. Fair Value of Financial Instn;tuments (Continued)
!

! Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Beneficial interest in trust held by others:

Money market funds | $ 161,886 $ - % - $ 161,886

Marketable equity securities:
Large-cap ‘ 2,210,348 100,989 - 2,311,337
Mid-cap 289,089 35,027 - 324,116
Small-cap - 23,110 - 23,110
International 350,202 46,386 - 396,588
Emerging markets 71,271 - - 71,271
Corporate bonds | - 699,707 - 699,707
Foreign bonds | - 20,558 - 20,558

Mutual funds: ;
Domestic fixed income - 972,085 - 972,085
International equity | 34,821 - - 34,821
International fixed irﬂcome - 15,194 - 15,194
Domestic large-cap qqulty 61,776 - - 61,776
Domestic mid-cap equ1ty 11,832 - - 11,832
Domestic small-cap ¢quity 17,527 - - 17,527
Government and agency securities 46,513 - - 46,513
Alternative and structured asset funds 26.687 - 57,709 84.396
$.3.281,952 $1913,056 $__ 57,709 $_5252,717
Liabilities: §

Interest rate swap agreements $ - ¥ — $4,041,445 $_4,041,445

The table below sets forth a 4ummary of changes in the fair value of Easter Seais NH’s Level 3 assets
and liabilities for the years en?ed August 31,2012 and 2011:

} Alternative
} Interest and Other
Rate Swaps  Asset Funds

Beginning balance, Septembei‘ 1,2010 $(3,362,975) § 79,457
Unrealized losses | (1,264,423) (21,748)
Payments, net : 585.953 -
Ending balance, August 31, 2 51 [ (4,041,445) 57,709
Unrealized (losses) gains (1,962,407) 20,905
Payments, net 708,196 -
Swap termination payment 159,678 —
Ending balance, August 31, 2012 $(5,135978) $_78,614
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NOTES TO

i
‘CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2012 and 2011

11. Fair Value of Financial Instﬁuments (Continued)

12.

\
Unrealized gains relating to the

Harbor Schools interest rate swap totaled $8,185 and $14,638 in 2012

and 2011, respectively, and are included within discontinued operations (see note 13).

The net amounts of unrealized losses for the period attributable to the change in unrealized losses

relating to the interest rate
$678,470, respectively. The
unrealized losses relating to

swaps still held at August31, 2012 and 2011 were $1,254,211 and
amount of unrealized losses for the period attributable to the change in
tthe Level 3 investments still held at August 31, 2012 and 2011 were

$12,817 and $21,748, respectively.

Easter Seals NH’s other financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable
from affiliates, program and other accounts receivable, contributions receivable, accounts payable, lines
of credit, and long-term debt, have fair values approximating their carrying values because of the short-
term nature of the financial in#truments or because interest rates approximate current market rates.

Acquisition

On September 1, 2011, Easter
NH became the sole member

Seals NH entered into an affiliation agreement under which Easter Seals
of Webster Place Center, Inc. (Webster Place). Webster Place was not

controlled by Easter Seals NH prior to this agreement. This affiliation has been accounted for in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles guidance on acquisitions by a not-for-profit
entity. Substantially all revenue and support of Webster Place is from fees charged for services.

Webster Place had revenue of]

approximately $2,064,000, and an increase in net assets from operations

of approximately $763,000 for the year ended August 31, 2012, which results were attributed by the

management of Easter Seals
identification of candidates

NH to being driven by effective management of the programs and
for those programs. The tangible and identifiable intangible assets

acquired, and deferred revenue and liabilities assumed, were initially recorded at their estimated fair

values as determined by mana

Assets acquired:
Cash and cash equivalents
Other current assets
Patient list
Fixed assets

Liabilities assumed:
Accounts payable
Deferred revenue
Debt

Fair value of net assets acquir

gement at the acquisition date, as summarized below:

$ 227,830
26,789
331,000
112.776

698,395
(54,125)

(131,582)
(512.688)

ed $ -
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NOTES TO|CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
|

© August 31, 2012 and 2011

13. Discontinued Operations |

On January 25, 2012, the Boa‘ d of Directors of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., as recommended by
the Harbor Schools Board of Directors, voted to close Harbor Schools and cease all operations of this
subsidiary. On January 25, 2012, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. also
voted to approve discontinuiq]g the group home and special education programs in Rutland, Vermont.
The management of Easter Seals NH has determined that the closure of each of these programs met the
criteria for classification as discontinued operations. The decisions to close the programs were based
on performance factors. A |summary statement of financial position for Harbor Schools and the
Vermont special education prdgrams as of August 31,2012 and 2011 is as follows:

Vermont Programs Harbor Schools
2012 2011 2012 2011

Total assets | $1,000 $395,021 $1,118,306 $2,776,903
Total liabilities - 57,958 813,880 3,046,517
Net assets (deficit):

Unrestricted ! 1,000 337,063 251,319 (320,485)

Temporarily restricted | - - 29,281 27,045

Permanently restricted 1 - - 23,826 23,826

A summary of the statements of activities for the Vermont Programs and Harbor Schools, prior to
reclass to discontinued operat ons, for the years ended August 31, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:
\

; Vermont Programs Harbor Schools

i 2012 2011 2012 2011

1
Total public support and reveﬂue $ 242,500 §$ 938,761 § 2,589,615 § 6,227,872
Operating expenses ‘ (401,216) (832,631) (3,871,472) (6,940,125)
Other non-operating expenses, gains and losses - - (57,538) (26,111)
Gain (loss) on sale of propeni?as, net 106,474 - 1.913.435 (65.009)
Total increase (decrease) in nét assets $_(52.242) $.106,130 $_ 574,040 $_ (803,373)

During 2012, Easter Seals H sold six properties related to the closure of these programs, which
resulted in gains on the sale of property of $2,019,909 for the year ended August 31, 2012.

14. Concentrations

Easter Seals NH maintains its|cash and cash equivalents in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may
exceed federally insured limits. As of August 31, 2012 and 2011, approximately $4,264,000 and
$4,649,000, respectively, of cash and cash equivalents (including cash and cash equivalents classified
within assets limited as to use) exceeded federally insured limits and were uncollateralized. Easter
Seals NH has not experienced any losses in such accounts, and management believes Easter Seals NH
is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents.

\
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